WORK STUDY & INSTITUTIONAL HIRE STUDENT EMPLOYMENT HANDBOOK

STUDENT GUIDE TO THE WORK STUDY AND INSTITUTIONAL HIRE PROGRAM AT CLARK COLLEGE

2024 - 2025



WORK STUDYINSTITUTIONAL HIRE1933 FORT VANCOUVER WAY1933 FORT VANCOUVER WAYVANCOUVER, WA 98663VANCOUVER, WA 98663GHL101GHL108WSJobs@Clark.eduStudentemployment@Clark.eduFinancial Aid Office Hours:Career Services Hours:https://www.clark.edu/enroll/paying-for-college/financial-aid/index.phphttps://www.clark.edu/enroll/careers/index.php

The information contained in this handbook reflects an accurate picture of the Clark College Work Study & Institutional Hire Policies at the time of publication. However, Clark College reserves the right to make necessary changes to these policies and procedures.

Revised 11/2024

CONTENTS

ABOUT STUDENT EMPLOYMENT	3
Introductory Information	3
• Eligibliity	4
Types of Student Employment	4
Satisfactory Academic Progress Policy	5
Maintaining a Job Over More than One Academic Year	5
Termination	6
GETTING STARTED AS A NEW STUDENT EMPLOYEE	6
How to access the student employment job board	6
Authorization to Work	7
Guidelines for Job Success	7
Required trainings:	8
GETTING PAID	8
Benefits eligibility	8
Reporting Time	8
Payroll/Pay Dates	9
Holiday and Overtime Pay	9
Pay Rates	9
Clark College State/IH Student Employment-Salary Chart	10
Clark College Federal/IH Student Employment- Salary Chart	10
Pay increases for current student employees	11
Volunteer Work	11
• Student Employment during the Period of Non-Enrollment (i.e. Summer)	11
Worker's Compensation	11
Unemployment	11

• FICA (Sou	cial Security) Taxes	
TIME OFF AND LEAVE F	POLICIES	
• Sick Leav	/e	13
• Suspend	ed operations and inclement weather	
• Manage	r responsibilities	13
Monitor	ing Hours and Earnings	
• Maximu	m Hours and Conditions of Employment	
• Calculati	ing Hours	15
WORK POLICIES		15
• Student	Employee Responsibilities	15
Non-Disc	crimination Statement (622.000)	
• Sexual H	arassment	
• Drug and	d Alcohol Policy (615.000)	
• Driving &	& Vehicles	19
Telephor	ne Usage	19
• Break ar	nd Rest Periods	
• Clark Em	ail	
RESOURCES FOR STUD	ENT EMPLOYEES	

If after reading this handbook you have questions or concerns, please email <u>WSjobs@clark.edu</u> or stop by the Financial Aid Office located in GHL101. If you have questions about Institutional Hire, please email <u>Studentemployment@Clark.edu</u>, or stop by GHL108.

About Student Employment

Note: It is important that you read and understand the material presented in this handbook. If you do not understand policies in this handbook, we would be happy to answer any questions you may have. If these policies are violated, we retain the right of canceling your Work Study award.

Due to safety concerns, all on-campus student employees should generally be supervised at all times by a full-time staff or faculty member.

INTRODUCTORY INFORMATION

These guidelines, policies, and procedures have been developed to meet the needs of student employees and their supervisors. The Work Study Specialist, in conjunction with the Office of Financial Aid, is responsible for administering the Work Study program. Career Services administers the Institutional Hire program.

Work experience enables students to explore career options, discover strengths and weaknesses, likes and dislikes, and experience how academic learning applies to the working world (Studies indicate that students who work a moderate number of hours per week are more likely to stay in school and achieve as high, or higher, GPA as students who do not work). It should also be noted that employers prefer to hire college graduates who have had work experience.

Student employment is intended to be a learning experience and a productive activity requiring clearly defined guidelines. It provides opportunities for eligible students to finance their college education and prepare for the working world via the processes of interviewing, hiring, training, supervision, performance evaluations, relations with co-workers and the public, meeting expectations, and developing good work habits. We encourage supervisors and student employees to be aware of their responsibilities and be active agents in making the employment experience positive for all parties.

Department responsibilities:

Financial Aid is responsible for processing the student's financial aid file.

Human Resources is responsible for the background check, I-9, W4, Workforce Profile.

Career and Employment Services provides a variety of employment and career related services and is responsible for advertising jobs in the community, assistance with resumes, issuing Institutional Hire job referrals and authorization to work emails.

Work Study is responsible for making sure that students maintain their eligibility to work, tracking earnings, resolving work-related problems, issuing Work Study referrals and authorization to work emails.

Work First (WFWS) students must be eligible participants of the Work First Program and need to be determined through the Workforce Education Services Office. Work First students must receive Authorization to Work each term even if they are continuing in the same job.

Payroll is responsible for processing payroll entries and assisting students with payroll issues.

ELIGIBLIITY

Work Study employees must be enrolled in an eligible degree or certificate program as determined by Financial Aid and maintain Satisfactory Academic Progress. Work Study and Institutional Hire employees must be registered for at least six (6) credits each term. The only exception to this rule is during summer quarter if a student utilizes the Intent to Enroll option.

Students whose enrollment no longer meets the requirements for student hourly employment must be immediately terminated from their student position.

Departments may utilize student employees only to the extent that the student employees supplement and do not displace or replace classified non-union or bargaining unit employees.

To be eligible for student hourly employment, individuals must be eligible to work in the United States and complete the <u>Employment Eligibility Verification Form I-9</u> and present original document(s) that establish their identity and employment authorization within three business days of their first day of employment.

TYPES OF STUDENT EMPLOYMENT

FEDERAL WORK STUDY (FWS)

A federally funded employment program which provides financial assistance to students by compensating them for the work they perform. These funds are administered through the Office of Financial Aid. FWS positions might be on or off campus. Students should be receiving work experiences that is directly applicable to the skills needed for their career path.

Federal work study wages do not count as income towards your future financial aid or state benefits and cannot be garnished.

The rate of pay for FWS positions should be comparable to that of other employees in that department or organization engaged in similar work in most cases. To participate in FWS employment, a student should apply for Financial Aid and be awarded Work Study funds. Eligible students receive a Work Study award which determines the number of hours they can work, not to exceed the maximum hours of 17 per week/69 per month. The award amount is subject to change. Awards are not based on employer's need, but on availability of funds and student's eligibility.

STATE WORK STUDY (SWS)

A state funded employment program which provides financial assistance to student by compensating them for the work they perform. These funds come from Washington State Legislature and are administered by the Washington Student Achievement Council through the Office of Financial Aid. SWS positions might be on or off campus. Students should be receiving work experiences that bear relationship to the students' formal academic program and/or career interest.

State work study wages generally count as income towards your future financial aid and state benefits and can be garnished.

The rate of pay for SWS positions is comparable to that of other employees in that department or organization engaged in similar work. To participate in SWS employment, a student should apply for financial aid, be awarded Work Study funds, and be a Washington State resident who is eligible for Washington College Grant. Eligible students receive a Work Study award which determines the number of hours they can work, not to exceed the maximum hours of 17 per week/69 per month. The award amount is subject to change. Awards are not based on employer's need, but on availability of funds and student's eligibility.

INSTITUTIONAL HIRE (STU)

Funded by the department that is hiring. STU positions are on campus. Student hours worked should not exceed the maximum hours of 17 per week/69 per month. Students must be enrolled in at least 6 credits.

WORKFIRST WORK STUDY (WFWS)

Awarded through the Eligibility Programs Office to WorkFirst students who need a work activity to meet their WorkFirst participation requirements. WFWS is federally funded employment.

SATISFACTORY ACADEMIC PROGRESS POLICY

Students must meet the Financial Aid Satisfactory Academic Progress Policy requirements to maintain eligibility for work study. It is the student's responsibility to understand and follow the policy. If they do not understand they should reach out to the Office of Financial Aid with questions.

http://www.clark.edu/enroll/paying-for-college/documents/SatisfactoryAcademicProgressPolicy.pdf

Students must meet the institution's Academic Standards Policy.

https://www.clark.edu/about/governance/policies-procedures/academic_standards/

MAINTAINING A JOB OVER MORE THAN ONE ACADEMIC YEAR

Student employment positions expire at the end of each academic year and must be renewed to continue working. Academic years run from July 1st to June 30th.

If you would like to apply for the same position in the following academic year, your eligibility for student employment **must be re-evaluated to ensure that you meet all current Federal and State guidelines.**

If it is determined that you are eligible for student employment, you must obtain a new referral from Financial Aid or Career Services. If you have had a break from your job for one term or longer and your supervisor requests that you return to the same position, you must get a new referral.

TERMINATION

Clark College student employment is an "at-will" employment relationship. This means that either party can end the employment relationship at any time, for any reason.

The supervisor has the authority to hire and/or terminate student employees as deemed appropriate, after consultation with their supervisor, the Work Study Office, and Humane Resources. The supervisor also has the responsibility to conduct performance evaluations for the student employee and will determine their own procedures and schedules for evaluations. The following are examples for disciplinary action and/or possible discharge:

- Repeated absences and/or late arrival to work.
- Inability to perform job requirements.
- Unsatisfactory completion of work assignments.
- Dishonest alteration of timesheet(s).
- Student does not inform supervisor of changes made to their award.

It is generally expected that students give the supervisor a two-week notice prior to terminating their position whenever possible.

If the student employee quits or is terminated from the position, they should report to the Financial Aid Office or Career Services. The supervisor will submit an Employee Status Change Form Report to the Human Resources Department.

GETTING STARTED AS A NEW STUDENT EMPLOYEE

HOW TO ACCESS THE STUDENT EMPLOYMENT JOB BOARD

Work Study Students:

- Be enrolled in a minimum of 6 credits.
- If you're under the age of 18 you must fill out a parent/school authorization form and turn it into Career Services.
- Accept your Work Study award (work study students only)
 - Log into your MyClark@CTClink > Click Student Homepage > Click the Financial Aid tile > Click 2025 > click the accept/decline link and proceed with accepting the offer.
- Complete the Quiz and view the job board (work study students will have to wait until the day after they've accepted their award.)
 - Please log into your MyClark@Clark (user: first initial.Last name) and click the "student employment" link under "paying for college." This is where you can complete the student employment quiz and then view available positions.
- Request referrals by clicking the "referral" button on the job listing. Once your referral request is reviewed and approved by a student employment administrator it will be sent to the supervisor for the position. The supervisor will reach out to you for an interview.

AUTHORIZATION TO WORK

After a student is hired they cannot work until the supervisor receives an Onboarding email from <u>WSjobs@clark.edu</u> or <u>studentemployment@Clark.edu</u>. This email ensures that the student is still qualifying to participate in student employment.

PAYROLL PAPERWORK: completed after the Human Resources Office (HR) completes the background check and has all necessary paperwork from the student. HR begins the hiring paperwork with a student once the supervisor and student have both accepted the referral. The paperwork includes the following forms:

- I-9 form
- W-4 form
- Workforce Profile
- Direct Deposit Form

BACKGROUND CHECK: required for all student employment positions at Clark College. Background checks are completed once a year for new student employees or student employees who are rehired after a break in employment.

A criminal history does not automatically disqualify a student from student employment. The decision whether to hire the student or not will include the following considerations:

- The nature of the offense and potential risks to Clark College
- When the offense occurred
- The student employment position and the relevancy of the offense

GUIDELINES FOR JOB SUCCESS

- Understand the policies and procedures. Read this handbook carefully.
- Report to work on time.
- Follow the rules, regulations, and policies of your employer.
- Keep an accurate record of hours worked by filling out your electronic time sheet each day upon departure from work.
- Notify your supervisor before your shift if you will be late or unable to report to work.
- The dress code for student employees is determined by the department. Check with your employer for specific requirements.
- If you terminate your position, report immediately to Financial Aid (WS) or Career Services (IH).
- Meet standards for academic progress (SAP) as defined by the college (see end of the handbook).
- Update your ctcLink account if there are any changes in your address, name, or phone number.
- Approach your instructor for assistance when having problems in your classes.
- Discuss job related problems with your supervisor. We recommend resolving problems right away rather than letting the problem get out of control.

- Maintain a learning attitude, ask questions, and listen carefully when given instructions. If you do not understand the instructions you are given, ask for clarification.
- Be open to admitting mistakes and accept constructive criticism graciously.
- Work well with others. Many people lose their jobs due to an inability to have a good relationship with others.
- Good working relationships are the key to success.
- Notify the Work Study Department or Career Services Department and your supervisor if you drop below six (6) credits, or if you decide to completely withdraw from classes during the term.
- Notify your supervisor if you have more than one position.

REQUIRED TRAININGS:

Higher Ed Works: Assigned trainings in higher ed works must be completed within 30 days of hiring. Supervisors are responsible for making sure this is completed.

One 2-hour Power, Privilege, and Inequity workshop (found in the development calendar as any training starting with "PPI"). Completed each fiscal year.

Equitable Decision-Making workshop (found in the development calendar under "EDM"). Complete every two years.

GETTING PAID

BENEFITS ELIGIBILITY

Most student employees are not eligible to participate in employer-sponsored medical or dental insurance or retirement plans.

Note: Some employment positions may affect the amount you receive in food stamps and/or TANF grant. If you have further questions, contact your DSHS caseworker. If you are enrolled in the WorkFirst Program, contact your advisor regarding your employment.

REPORTING TIME

ON CAMPUS

Employees will record their time in the HCM self-service portion of PeopleSoft. The employee records hours worked daily and submits the timesheet electronically to his/her supervisor by morning of the 15th day and last day of the month. Supervisors must have time to approve timesheets before 5pm. HR recommends recording your hours daily as you work.

Upon the review of the timesheet, the supervisor will either approve or reject it. If rejected, the student employee must make corrections and re-submit the timesheet. Once the timesheet has been approved by the supervisor, it will be processed by the Payroll Office.

Be sure that you select the appropriate payment code from the drop-down menu. If you do not recall which one you should select, refer to your onboarding email.

PAYROLL/PAY DATES

Payroll is issued by the 10th day and 25th day of each month. The Payroll Office is located in the Baird Administration Building. Your pay will be issued electronically. Please contact the Payroll Department at 360-992-2128 for direct deposit options.

HOLIDAY AND OVERTIME PAY

On-campus student employees do not receive paid holidays. They cannot perform work duties on holidays either.

Off-campus jobs may or may not compensate for holiday pay. Check with your off-campus supervisor for details.

Student employees may not work overtime.

OFF CAMPUS

Employees will record their time with the institution they are working at. Additionally, they will complete a timesheet to submit to the Office of Financial Aid. This timesheet must be submitted within two weeks of the end of the pay period, be filled out completely and accurately, and have original signatures from the student and the supervisor. This means that we must have the actual paper that was signed, no digital copies.

PAY RATES

The Human Resources office establishes compensation requirements in accordance with Clark College policy, the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), the Washington Minimum Wage Act (WMWA) and State/Federal work study regulations.

Student employees must be paid at least the Washington State minimum wage and must be compensated within the assigned salary range for the job profile.

Pay rates are based on the job duties that student employees are required to perform. A student employment administrator has evaluated each position's job description to ensure that the assigned job duties align with the pay rate associated with the appropriate job profile.

The hourly rate of pay for all student employees cannot be less than the entry level rate for non-student employment positions within the organization. On-campus State Work Study positions at public institutions should be comparable to a job classification under the Washington State Department of

Personnel (DOP) classification plan and receive equal compensation. Pay rates for the off-campus State Work Study jobs are comparable to other employees performing the same job duties within that organization.

CLARK COLLEGE STATE/IH STUDENT EMPLOYMENT-SALARY CHART

Level	Description	Salary	Typical Positions
OA 1	Supports office operations, maintains record keeping/filing system and/or database files, communicates effectively with co-workers and the public, and answers phones while following clearly established guidelines, receives and refers visitors.	\$16.52	Admissions, Advising, Career Center, EHS, Employee Development, International Programs, Financial Aid, Health Services, Security/Information

CLARK COLLEGE FEDERAL/IH STUDENT EMPLOYMENT- SALARY CHART

Level	Description	Salary	Typical Positions
Aide I	Under immediate supervision, perform tasks which can be learned easily and require only normal judgment, analytical or decision-making skills. In general, no prior training or experience required.	\$16.28	Light typing, filling, general office clerical, answer phones, wash dishes, buss tables, custodial, library or stockroom clerk, computer lab monitor.
Aide II	Moderate amount of assigned responsibility. Sometimes required to make decisions and display initiative regarding completion of tasks. Program specific knowledge or completion of courses is required.	\$16.40	Moderate typing and clerical work, setup labs, grade tests and tutor students in various class subjects, classroom/teacher assistants and computer lab assistants.

Aide III	Highly specialized work and moderate level of responsibility. Demonstrated initiative and progress within a field and/or specialized college coursework completed.	\$16.52	Front counter assignments requiring document intake/review/verification, positions requiring specialized knowledge beyond routine clerical tasks (i.e., Financial Aid, Enrollment Services, Advising, Assessment center monitors, and/or Format Editors), and/or facilitate workshops and study sessions.
----------	---	---------	---

Pay rate changes may happen throughout the academic year, due to increases in minimum wage and/or WPEA contract negotiations.

Note: Some employment positions may affect the amount you receive in food stamps and/or TANF grant. If you have further questions, contact your DSHS caseworker. If you are enrolled in the WorkFirst Program, contact your advisor regarding your employment.

PAY INCREASES FOR CURRENT STUDENT EMPLOYEES

Student employee pay ranges are updated annually to keep pace with the Washington State minimum wage, which increases each January 1 based on inflation. At the time of an update, any student employees paid below the new range minimum will be increased to range minimum.

VOLUNTEER WORK

The Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended, prohibits employers (including schools) from accepting voluntary services from any paid employee. Any student employed in the Work Study and Institutional Hire Program must be paid for all hours worked.

STUDENT EMPLOYMENT DURING THE PERIOD OF NON-ENROLLMENT (I.E. SUMMER)

Student employees may be eligible to work over the summer without being enrolled in any credits utilizing the Intent to Enroll option. Utilizing this option may impact financial aid awards in subsequent terms.

All earnings paid during a period of non-enrollment are subject to full payroll tax assessments. When students are enrolled in classes, the amount of tax withholdings is less.

WORKER'S COMPENSATION

The Washington State Department of Labor and Industries provides worker's compensation for jobrelated illnesses and injuries. You are covered by this insurance upon employment.

For workers compensation and workplace injuries, you must inform your supervisor immediately and contact the Risk Manager at <u>risk@clark.edu</u> or 360-992-2057. Your benefits can be affected if you do not.

UNEMPLOYMENT

Student employees are typically exempt from WA State unemployment compensation under <u>RCW</u> 50.44.040.

FICA (SOCIAL SECURITY) TAXES

Student employees who meet minimum enrollment qualifications (6 credits) are exempt from social security and Medicare taxes (FICA), which are otherwise withheld from employee earnings. If you are working on campus and are not enrolled in classes (i.e., summer break), you are subject to FICA taxes. In general, all wages earned by students from off-campus employers are subject to FICA taxes.

TIME OFF AND LEAVE POLICIES

SICK LEAVE

Paid sick leave is available for student employees to care for their health and the health of their family members. Student employees will accrue 1 hour for every 40 hours worked (RCW 49.46.210).

Authorized Uses of Paid Sick Leave

- Employee's mental or physical illness, injury, or health condition
- Employee's preventative care such as medical, dental, or optical appointments, and/or treatment

• Care of a family member with an illness, injury, health condition, and/or preventative care such as a medical, dental, and/or optical appointment

• Closure of the employee's place of business or child's school/place of care by order of a public official for any health-related reasons

• If the employee or employee's family member is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking

Sick leave hours apply to your 17-hour limit but not to your work study award amount.

Family member definition: "Family member" is defined as a child or parent (including biological, adopted, foster, step, or legal guardian, or de facto parent), a spouse, state registered domestic partner, spouse's parent, grandparent, grandchild, or sibling.

Students use their sick leave by selecting the "Manage Absences" tile under Time. Where they will select the start and end date, use the drop-down menu for Absence Name and select sick leave and then submit.

SUSPENDED OPERATIONS AND INCLEMENT WEATHER

When Clark College suspends operations, employees in positions designated essential are required to work. Except in unusual circumstances and with the advance approval of Human Resources, a student hourly employee's position should not be designated as "essential," and student employees should not be required to report to work during periods of suspended operations or locally severe weather that affects transportation or personal safety.

MANAGER RESPONSIBILITIES

TIME OFF REQUESTS

You should respond to an employee's time off request as soon as possible.

If you have any questions, including whether the time off request could fall under FMLA, contact Clark College's leave specialist. You may not require that the employee find a replacement worker to cover the hours during which they are using paid sick time off.

RETALIATION PROHIBITED

Any discrimination or retaliation against an employee for lawful exercise of paid sick time off rights is not allowed. Corrective action may not be taken for the lawful use of paid sick time off.

Questions: please reach out to the benefits representative Lisa Mercado at <u>Imercado@clark.edu</u> or 360.992.2952.

MONITORING HOURS AND EARNINGS

The student employee and the supervisor share the responsibility for monitoring the student's earnings to ensure that they do not exceed the authorized award amount. NOTE: The award amount is noted on the Student Referral Form. It can change and it is the student's responsibility to notify their supervisor of any changes made to their award. The student employee is also responsible to notify their supervisor if they are employed at more than one job through the student employment program.

Work Study is awarded annually and is specific to each term. Awards are only good for the quarter they are awarded in and may not be carried over from term to term. Unused funds in one term does not automatically carry over into the next term. Likewise, funding awarded for upcoming terms cannot be utilized until the term begins.

Institutional Hire positions are funded by each department. It will be the student's and supervisors' responsibility to check hours so that they do not exceed their budgeted amount or go over the 17/hour work week limit. It is also the student employee's responsibility to notify their supervisor if they are employed at more than one job through the student employment program.

MAXIMUM HOURS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

All student employees may work up to 17 hours a week but cannot exceed 69 hours a month.

*Work Study student employees cannot work 17 hours a week if this causes them to exceed their award amount.

Sick leave hours apply to your 17-hour limit but not to your work study award amount.

During breaks, the student can work up to 40 hours per week if they do not exceed their award for the given term and are enrolled the following term. However, students are limited to 69 hours a month with the exception that they can go up to 100 hours every 3rd month. A student cannot exceed 479 hours in any rolling 6 months. It is up to the discretion of the supervisor to decide if they want to utilize the ability to go above the 69 hours a month.

If the student employee is enrolled in 0-5 credits summer term, they must fill out an "Intent to Enroll" form stating that they will enroll in at least six (6) credits during the fall term.

Student employees who work more than 17/69-hour rule more than four (4) times a year will be subject to termination.

Student cannot work during their scheduled classes, apart from a class being cancelled for the day. It is the responsibility of the student to supply proof to their supervisor and the Office of Financial Aid that class was cancelled, and at that time student may be permitted to work.

Student employees who graduate are not eligible to work as a student hourly employee after their last final exam or during break periods unless they are enrolling in the following quarter as a graduate student. Federal payroll deduction requirements may apply to work performed during breaks and periods "on leave."

CALCULATING HOURS

To calculate average hours per week:

The student and the supervisor share the responsibility of monitoring a student's hours. All Work Study student employees may not work more than their awarded amount. If a student employee exceeds their awarded amount, the excess wages will be charged to the department's budget. Use the following example to determine how many hours can be worked per term based on the awarded amount:

Awarded amount / hourly rate of pay = number of hours a student can work per term

Examples:

Stanley Student has an awarded amount for the term of \$2000. The pay rate for the position he was hired for is \$16.52 an hour.

\$2000.00/\$16.52 = 121.06 hours per term. If a term is 3 months, then that equals 40 hours a month.

After reading this handbook, if you have questions or concerns, please e-mail the Work Study Department at <u>wsjobs@clark.edu</u> for Work Study questions. For Institutional Hire questions, please email Career Services at <u>studentemployment@Clark.edu</u>.

WORK POLICIES

STUDENT EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES

As a student, you should use your job as an opportunity to gain marketable skills and to establish a good work record. You have the right and the responsibility to know your job description in order to ensure that you are performing the duties as described. Since one benefit of student employment is the opportunity to develop employment skills, you are required to perform your work duties in a professional manner. If you are unsure about any part of your job responsibilities and/or expectations, promptly discuss your questions with your supervisor.

If you experience problems in your classes, approach your instructor for assistance. Tutoring is available for free in the Tutoring Center, <u>see here for more information</u>. If you need more time for studies, discuss workable solutions with your supervisor.

If you believe the current student employment job is not a good fit for you, consult with Career and Employment Services to discuss ways to professionally end the current employment. If you are having work-related problems, contact the Work Study Office at WSJobs@Clark.edu for Work Study positions. Contact Career Services at studentemployment@Clark.edu for Institutional Hire work-related problems.

NON-DISCRIMINATION STATEMENT (622.000)

The college affirms a commitment to freedom from discrimination for all members of the college community. The responsibility for, and the protection of, this commitment extends to students, faculty, administration, staff, contractors, and those who develop or participate in college programs. It encompasses every aspect of employment and every student and community activity. The college expressly prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, perceived or actual physical or mental disability, pregnancy, genetic information, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, creed, religion, honorably discharged veteran or military status, citizenship, immigration status, or use of a trained guide dog or service animal. Harassment is a form of discrimination.

If you have questions or concerns about discrimination, please contact:

Title IX and ADA Coordinator (students and employees):

Gerald Gabbard, Director of Labor & Compliance

360-992-2105

ggabbard@clark.edu or hr@clark.edu

Clark College, 1933 Fort Vancouver Way, Vancouver, WA 98661

Online discrimination and harassment complaint form: <u>https://clark-gme-advocate.symplicity.com/public_report/index.php/pid321909</u>

Section 504 Coordinator (students):

Megan Jasurda, Director of Disability Support Services

360-992-2065

mjasurda@clark.edu or dss@clark.edu

Clark College, 1933 Fort Vancouver Way, Vancouver, WA 98661

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Clark College has established Sexual Harassment and Non-Discrimination Policies and as a student employee you have the same rights under these policies as other Clark College employees. Sexual Harassment is a form of sex discrimination which involves the inappropriate introduction into the work or learning situation of sexual activities or comments that demean or otherwise diminish one's self-worth on the basis of gender. Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature constitute sexual harassment when:

• Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly as a term or condition of an individual's employment or academic standing.

- Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or academic decisions affecting such individual.
- Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work or academic performances or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work or educational environment.
- Sexual harassment often involves relationships of unequal power and contains elements of coercion as when compliance with requests for sexual favors becomes a criterion for granting work, study, or grading benefits. However, sexual harassment may also involve relationships among equals, e.g. student to student, as when repeated sexual advances or demeaning verbal behavior have a harmful effect on a person's ability to study or work.

As in all situations involving discrimination or harassment, the Director of Labor & Compliance/Title IX Coordinator is available to provide advisory assistance and to investigate all complaints of sexual harassment.

As with other types of discrimination, any student, faculty, or staff who has a complaint or who has received a complaint regarding sexual harassment should contact the Director of Labor & Compliance/Title IX Coordinator at 360-992-2105 or <u>hr@clark.edu</u>. An online complaint may also be filed at <u>https://clark-advocate.symplicity.com/titleix_report/index.php/pid612362</u>.

DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY (615.000)

Clark College is committed to providing a drug and alcohol-free workplace to protect the health and safety of employees, and to promote an efficient and productive work environment.

All student employees are required to abide by state and federal laws governing the possession, manufacture, distribution, dispensing, sale, and use of controlled substances while on college property or while involved in college business or activities. Clark College will seek to prevent alcohol and drug abuse in its community through the identification and adherence to all relevant laws and policies and college regulations.

All Work Study and Institutional Hire students are required to read and sign the Clark College Drug-Free Workplace Policy.

Employees who recognize they may have a problem with controlled substance or alcohol abuse are encouraged to come forward and seek assistance to solve their problem. The supervisor will remove the employee from any safety-sensitive job tasks, contact Human Resources, grant leave where appropriate, refer the employee to a substance abuse professional, and allow the employee to return to work when the substance abuse professional provides them with a return-to-work plan acceptable to the appointing authority. A request for assistance in dealing with a drug or alcohol-related problem, however, will not serve to insulate an employee from corrective action for performance-related problems. Employees seeking treatment for controlled substance or alcohol abuse can be assured that the treatment will be kept strictly confidential by college representatives, management, and coworkers.

RULES FOR ALL EMPLOYEES

- Any activities involving the use, possession, distribution, or sale of alcohol, unauthorized prescription drugs, controlled substances, or drug paraphernalia at college facilities are prohibited. Any exceptions must be approved by the College president in accordance with Administrative Procedure <u>512.005 Alcohol Consumption</u>.
- Employees will report to work in a fit condition, unaffected by alcohol, controlled substances, or unauthorized prescription drugs. Employees will not use alcohol, controlled substances, or unauthorized prescription drugs during working hours or while in paid standby status.
- Employees will not utilize the College's equipment, facilities, worksites, or properties for prohibited activities.
- 4. When there is a reasonable cause to believe that an employee's work performance is affected by alcohol, controlled substances, authorized or unauthorized prescription drugs, Clark College may relieve the employee of duty, direct that the employee be tested for alcohol and controlled substances, and provide transportation to the employee's personal residence. Such incidents will be documented and reported to the associate vice president of human resources and the appropriate Executive Cabinet member for further action, which may include disciplinary action.
- Employees will not operate a state-owned, rented, or privately-owned vehicle while performing official duties if their performance is affected by alcohol, controlled substances, or unauthorized prescription drugs.
- 6. Employees using a prescription or non-prescription drug, which they believe may impair job performance, will inform their supervisor of such drug use. For the safety of all, supervisors may require employees to disclose use of prescription and non-prescription medication and provide information on potential job impacts. Employees whose work performance is temporarily impacted by prescription and non-prescription drugs may be reassigned productive alternate work if available or be required to take leave.
- 7. Employees convicted of a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace must notify their immediate supervisor within five days of their conviction. Within 30 days of this notification, the College may impose appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, and/or require that the employee satisfactorily complete an approved substance abuse rehabilitation program.

- If at any time driving is a job assignment, employees will immediately notify their supervisor in writing of any driving citations involving controlled substances or alcohol and any convictions that result from the citations.
- 9. Employees must submit to alcohol and controlled substance testing when required by the procedures outlined below. A refusal to test is considered the same as a positive test.
- 10. All employees will comply with these rules, and those found to be in violation will be subject to corrective/disciplinary action according to appropriate CBA's, WACs, or College procedures. Disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, may be considered for any violation consistent with the appropriate collective bargaining agreement.

Drug and Alcohol Counseling and Services: The Counseling & Health Center, (360) 992-2264, provides information, referral and counseling to students and staff for substance abuse issues.

For more information click here.

DRIVING & VEHICLES

Per State of Washington rules through the Department of Enterprise Services, student workers are not permitted to drive college owned vehicles or rental vehicles for any reason, including carts.

TELEPHONE USAGE

Personal phone calls and text messages should be made on your own time during your scheduled break. You are not to make or receive personal phone calls while on the job.

BREAK AND REST PERIODS

Employees shall be allowed a rest period of not less than 10 minutes, on the employer's time, for each 4 hours of working time. Rest periods shall be scheduled as near as possible to the midpoint of the work period. No employee shall be required to work more than three hours without a rest period. Where the nature of the work allows employees to take intermittent rest periods equivalent to 10 minutes for each 4 hours worked, scheduled rest periods are not required. Students working more than 5 consecutive hours in a continuous shift must take a minimum unpaid rest period of 30 minutes somewhere in the midpoint of their schedule.

CLARK EMAIL

Student employees are required to use their official Clark email account for work-related emails to comply with records management and request policies, and to protect Clark records in the event of a data breach. Emails are considered public record and should not be deleted without proper procedure

RESOURCES FOR STUDENT EMPLOYEES

Security

- o **360-992-2133**
- In urgent or dangerous situations, call <u>911</u>.

Student CARE Process

o <u>Student CARE Process (clark.edu)</u>

Complaints

- Student complaint process: <u>https://www.clark.edu/campus-life/student-support/student_complaint/</u>
- Complaint process: <u>https://www.clark.edu/campus-life/student-support/care-community-standards/care/complaints.php</u>

Disability Support Services Office:

o <u>https://www.clark.edu/campus-life/student-support/disability_support/</u>

Office of Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

https://www.clark.edu/campus-life/student-support/diversity-and-equity/

Free Tutoring Services

o <u>https://www.clark.edu/campus-life/student-support/tutoring/</u>

Penguin Pantry

<u>https://www.clark.edu/campus-life/student-support/penguinpantry/</u>